SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 7, 2013
9:03 a.m

9:03: 15 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Lynn Kent, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Environnental
Conservation; Chip Thoma, President, Responsible Cruising
in Al aska; John  Bi nkl ey, Pr esi dent, Al aska Cruise
Associ ation; Pete Wdin, Honer; Dave Wtzel, Admralty
Environnmental , Juneau; Andy Rogers, Al aska State Chanber of
Commerce, Anchor age; Dr . K. Koski, Salnon Biologist,
Juneau; Karla Hart, Alaska Community Action on Toxics,
Juneau; Daven Hafey, Southeast Al aska Conservation Council,
Juneau; Janes Sullivan, Sout heast Al aska Conservation
Council, Juneau; Jim Powell, Juneau; Mchelle Ridgeway,
Juneau; Melissa Kookesh, Assistant to the President,
Central Council Tlingit and Haida Indian Tribes of Al aska
(CCTHI TA) .

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Rick Rogers, Executive Director, Resources Devel opnent
Council; Rick Harness, Honmer; Mchael MCarthy, Honmer; Eric
Yancey, Wangell; David Beebe, Kupreanof; Byron Charles,



Ket chi kan; Bernahard Richert, Anchorage; Ceorge Pl etnikoff,
Pal mer; Darlene Dobds, California; Vi Waghiyi, Village of
Savoonga; Delice Calcote, Alaska Inter Travel Council,
Sutton; Piama O eyer, Unal aska; Harrol d Borbidge, Sitka.

SUMVARY
SB 29 CRU SE SHI P WASTEWATER DI SCHARGE PERM TS

SB 29 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

HB 80 CRU SE SH P WASTEWATER DI SCHARGE PERM TS

HB 80 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb29
SENATE BILL NO. 29

"An Act relating to the regulation of wastewater
di scharge from commerci al passenger vessels in state
wat ers; and providing for an effective date."

9:03: 23 AM

Co- Chair Meyer asked the deputy conm ssioner to detail the
di fferences between the house and the senate bills.

LYNN KENT, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF ENVI RONVENTAL
CONSERVATI ON stated that there were no differences between
the two bills.

SB 29 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb80
HOUSE BI LL NO. 80

"An Act relating to the regulation of wastewater
di scharge from commerci al passenger vessels in state
wat ers; and providing for an effective date."

9:04: 05 AM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that HB 80 would replace SB 29. He
stated that invited and public testinony would be heard.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 02/07/13 9:03 A M



CH P THOWA, PRESIDENT, RESPONSIBLE CRU SING |N ALASKA,
di scussed past acconplishnments regarding cruise ship. He
stated that his organization formed in 1999 to propose a
local cruise ship head tax for the Cty and Borough of
Juneau. He addressed the prior neeting's testinony by
Deputy Comm ssioner Kent. The Departnent of Justice found
t hat maj or shipping lines were violating ©pollution
requi renents by rerouting pipes in their sewage system
allowing the ships to discharge at night. These shipping
lines were fined $30 mllion in 2000. A survey in Al aska
found that that none of the advanced wastewater treatnment
systens were operational.

M. Thoma recalled Deputy Conmm ssioner Kent voicing that
the state could not neet all of the water quality
standards, but he agreed that the progress was remnmarkabl e.
He understood that many of the water treatnent systens were
functional. He expressed concern about discharge of ammonia
and copper. He stated that copper, nickel and zinc
di scharge resulted from pipes on the ship and ammobnia was a
conponent of large volumes of grey water. He inforned the
cormmittee that water softeners used in the cruise ships
di ssolved the metal in the pipes and led to copper being
di scharged in the ocean. He acknow edged that sonme ships
wer e copper and netal free.

9:09: 02 AM

M. Thoma  addressed questions posed by Vice-Chair
Fai r cl ough. He explained that onshore permts existed for
areas that were easily tested and for ocean rangers. Juneau
had four connections to the sewage treatnent plant for grey
water. He nentioned the Ccean Ranger Program M xing zones
remai ned the sane including Chatham straight and Stevens
Passage. The salnon migration routes were the sanme. He
stated that 14 of the ships discharged offshore and they
were permtted to do so, while 7 discharged in harbors,
which |essened the inpact. He advocated for |eaving the
present law in place, as it maintained a higher standard
He recomended extending permts to 2020. He added that
| owering the copper count discharged by cruise ships was as
sinple as elimnating the use of water softeners on the
shi ps. Since the copper affected salnon only, he
recommended rel ocation of the ships with copper pipes.

9:11:46 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 02/07/13 9:03 A M



M. Thoma stated that testing for nobile mXxing zones was
conplicated, as cruise ship discharge occurred at night. He
recommended sinple solutions to many of the issues. He
added that netal ball valves wused during port tine
increased the copper counts. Wen the netal ball valves
were replaced with plastic, the copper counts decreased
dramatical ly.

M. Thoma discussed Deputy Conm ssioner Kent's affidavit
presented four years ago regarding the cruise ships. He
offered to attach copies of the affidavit to his testinony
for conmttee nmenbers.

9:13:29 AM

Co- Chair Meyer understood M. Thoma's opinion was to extend
the permt and allow technology "tinme to catch up." If the
cruise lines with copper pipes continued to struggle, the
shi ps could be recycled and used el sewhere.

9:14:17 AM
AT EASE

9:14: 50 AM
RECONVENED

JOHN BI NKLEY, PRESIDENT, ALASKA CRU SE ASSOCI ATI ON, noted
that he represented an organi zation that contributed to the
econony in Alaska. He comrended Deputy Commi ssioner Kent on
her testinmony during the prior neeting. He discussed the
work of the science panel that generated the inpetus for
the bill. The issues addressed in HB 80 had been revi ewed
for many years. He provided history of cruise ships and
di scharge of wastewater in Alaska. He stated that a group
of scientists researched wastewater in Al aska.

M. Binkley explained that in June 2001 under Governor Tony
Know es, review of cruise ship wastewater |ed to nunerous
studies performed by a panel of renowned scientists. New
| egi sl ati on was adopted to control the discharge of treated
wastewater from cruise ships in Alaska. The ships were
required to have advanced wastewater treatnent stations.
The industry invested over $200 mllion on the required
systens. The industry enpl oyed technol ogy changes i ncl udi ng
the decision to appoint an environnmental officer to oversee
the regulations. The officer reported to the CEO and

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 02/07/13 9:03 A M



supervi sed the managenent practices regarding environnental
matters.

9:19:45 AM

M. Binkley stated that the ships discharged "near drinking
water"” effluent on a continuous basis follow ng treatnent.
The industry reached a nuch higher quality of discharge in
2004. In 2006, a ballot initiative was passed, inplenenting
5 different taxes on the cruise industry. He opined that
the ballot initiative established a requirenent that was
unique to large ships and was unattainable. The |egislature
reviewed the ballot initiative in 2009 through a long and
heat ed debate. The |egislature in 2009 opted for additional
time and a review by a science advisory panel. The
prelimnary report in January 2013 concluded that the
technol ogy enployed by the cruise ships was the best
avai |l abl e. New and energi ng technol ogi es were sought by the
panel w thout success. The science panel determ ned that
all marine species were protected. He maintained that the
bill allowed the Departnment of Environnmental Conservation
(DEC) to nmke sound decisions when protecting the Al askan
envi ronment .

9:24: 21 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough recalled an allegation of felony
charges regarding the discharge of raw sewage at night. She
asked if every cruise ship entering Al askan waters used
advanced treat nent systens.

M. Binkley replied that nuch msinformation was released
to the public. He stressed that DEC would not allow the
practice. He argued that the statenments regarding raw
sewage were reckless. He noted that prosecution woul d occur
for the gross violation. He stated that cruise ships
di scharged drinking water quality effluence continuously.

9: 26: 40 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough stated that DEC confirnmed that clear
water was discharged. Four conponents were identified;
anmoni a, nickel, copper and zinc existed at higher |evels
than were recommended by the initiative. She expressed
interested in the conversation regarding nickel and copper
in ocean waters.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 02/07/13 9:03 A M



M. Binkley testified that "as an Alaskan" his famly
relied on the tourismindustry. The issue was framed as an
one supporting industry, when he opined that the issue
supported Al askans. He stressed that the cruise ships would
take their business el sewhere and Al askans woul d be hurt by
the lack of tourismdollars.

9:29:59 AM

Senator O son asked about how many of M. Binkley's 170
enpl oyees were Alaskan and received a Permanent Fund
Di vi dend ( PFD).

M. Binkley responded that his conpany hired Al askans, but
he was not sure about his enpl oyees' PFDs.

Senator O son asked if he visited the "R verboat Discovery"
and asked the enployees what part of Nebraska they were
from how they woul d answer.

M. Binkley responded that he had no enployees from
Nebr aska.

9:31:21 AM

Senator A son stated that nmany summer enployees in Al aska
were visiting from ot her states.

M. Binkley responded that there was validity to Senator
A son's concern. He admitted that many seasonal businesses
t ook advantage of the visitor season.

Senator (O son stated that nmany of the products sold in
tourism shops were not made in Al aska. He argued that it
was not Al askans directly af f ect ed, but i nst ead
opportuni sts taking advantage of the tourist season.

M. Binkley argued that nmany Al askans were enpl oyed by the
tourismindustry. He recommended an inquiry wth Departnent
of Labor and Workforce Devel opnment regarding statistics. He
understood that statistics suggested a high |evel of
enpl oynent by Alaska in the visitor industry.

9:32:58 AM

Co- Chair Meyer opened public testinony.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 02/07/13 9:03 A M



9:33: 33 AM

PETE WEDIN, HOMER, stated that he owned and operated a
small fishing charter in Alaska. He informed the conmttee
that the Alaska Seafood Marketing Industry (ASM) stated
that Alaskan waters were pure. He recommended that
| egislators and the public visit ww. al askaseafood.org to
becone nore famliar with the canpaign that would spend
over $20 nmillion in 2013 to pronote Alaska's inmage. He
suggested that the legislation would conprom se the inmage.
He explained that his fishing area was designated a
critical habitat area in 1974. The area included nany
oyster farnms and he requested that the conmttee anmend HB
80 to prevent discharges in sensitive areas around the
state. He concluded that the prelimnary report was not
"final" and he appealed to allow the scientific panel to
finish its research and provide the final report.

9:36:11 AM

DAVE WETZEL, ADM RALTY ENVI RONMENTAL, JUNEAU, testified in
favor of HB 80. He stated that advanced wastewater system
manufacturers created solutions that worked to neet the
standards. He stated that he was personally involved in all
of the sanpling and witnessed a high |evel of conpliance in
the effluent tested. He stated that if ships were
di scharging at ni ght, which was when sanpling was
performed. The sanpling program would catch any night tine
illegal discharge. He noted the remarkable consistency in
results between the different treatnment systenms. The
problem was already solved via the inplenentation of
stricter regul ati ons. The regulations were net. He
expressed admration for the industry and their conpliance
wi th and concern about test results.

9:41:45 AM

ANDY ROCERS, ALASKA STATE CHAMBER OF COMVERCE, ANCHORAGE,

testified in favor of policies that inproved the business
climate and protected the environment. Menbers of the
organi zation gathered to establish positions prior to the
| egislative session and the proposed |egislation becane a
priority. He advocated for policies based on sound science.

He spoke to the economc inpact of cruise ship tourism
across the state. He testified 1in support of the
| egi sl ati on.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 02/07/13 9:03 A M



9:45: 02 AM

Senator O son asked if the next generation of Al aska would
condemn the legislature for ignoring the risks to the
sal non popul ation by passing the |legislation. He voiced
t hat his constituents were faced wth rmany sal non
"di sasters” that led to significant | osses for fishernen.

9:46: 09 AM

M. Rogers encouraged the legislature to |ean on the state
agencies and trust that they have the best interest in
protecting Al aska. He could not predict the threats to the
envi ronnent . The wast ewat er t reat ment systens wer e
preform ng exceptionally well.

9:47: 26 AM

Senator O son expressed a lack of trust in the scientific
panel. He stated that the renoval of one scientist who had
an adverse opinion suggested that the panel was designed to
create a report that would facilitate the industry's goal.

M. Rogers could not speak to the credentials of the
menbers of the science panel and was not in a position to
critique their performnce.

Senator Dunl eavy asked about Alaska State Chanber of
Commerce nenbers with seaf ood trade associ ati ons.

M. Rogers replied that several nenbers had seafood trade
associations. He offered to provide a Ilist of active
menbers of the chanber of commerce.

Senator Dunleavy clarified that the Al aska State Chanber of
Commerce represented both the cruise industry and the
seaf ood trade associ ati ons.

M. Rogers agreed that his nenbership consisted of private
sector businesses and did not distinguish by geographic
| ocation, size or industry. Because of the diversity,
deci sions were well vetted.

9: 50: 09 AM

DR K  KOSKI, SALMON BIOLOCd ST, JUNEAU, testified in
interest of maintaining the pristine environnment for salnon

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 02/07/13 9:03 A M



in Alaska. He offered to answer questions. He stated that
very | ow concentrations of copper did affect the olfactory
function of salnon, which was essential to their mgration.
He suggested that the fishing industry would suffer as a
result of cunul ative copper counts in the ocean. He opposed
t he | egislation.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked about the Copper River Kking sal non.
The Copper River was nanmed because of the copper mne in
the vicinity. He assuned that there was copper in the river
and wondered why the sal non runs were not i npact ed.

Dr. Koski replied that he did not have the data regarding
copper counts in the Copper River.

Senat or Dunl eavy assunmed that prior to the mning
regul ati ons; copper nmay have been discharged into the river
via the mne. He added that ice nelt from glaciers mght
| ead to copper leaching into the river.

9:54: 21 AM

Dr. Koski respected the question as one posed by proponents
of Pebble Mne. He opined that the |evels of copper in the
Copper River represented an inportant piece of the
di scussi on.

Vice-Chair Fairclough referred to Pebble Mne advertising

and conflicting information about copper Ilevels. She
wondered if the effect of the copper conprom sed the health
of the fish. She noted that Iland based facilities

di scharged | evels across the Al askan coast, which had been
deened acceptable. She wondered if the effect of copper in
the water danaged the fish or conpromsed the olfactory
sense.

Dr. Koski suggested that both homing and survival of the
salnon were affected by copper. He referenced research by
Dr. Shultz that observed wurban run-off in streans and
nortalities were found in adult salnon. The copper
pollution was an effect of both terrestrial and water
sources. He offered to provide research about copper
toxicity and effects on the olfactory of salnon to the
commttee. He apologized that he had very little tinme to
prepare for the presentation.

Co-Chair Meyer offered to copy the research

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 02/07/13 9:03 A M



9:57:15 AM

KARLA HART, ALASKA COMWUNITY ACTION ON TOXICS, JUNEAU
advocated for fairness. She testified in opposition to the
| egi sl ation. She pointed out argunents that municipalities
and ferries were not held to the same standards as the
cruise ships. The ferry and comunity wastewater systens
were serving a public purpose. The cruise ship industry
benefited from externalizing costs to the nmaxi mum extent
for corporate profits.

10: 02: 24 AM

DAVEN HAFEY, SOUTHEAST ALASKA CONSERVATI ON COUNCI L, JUNEAU
expl ained that the Southeast Alaska Conservation Counci
advocated for nmenbers from 18 comunities throughout
Sout heast Al aska. Many nenbers' |ivelihoods depended on
healthy water. He stressed that his council was not opposed
to the cruise ship industry, but he advocated for thriving
in a way that honored and respected the waters. He pointed
out that the legislation was based on a prelimnary report,
rather than a final report. He opposed the |egislation.

10: 04: 10 AM

JAMES SULLI VAN, SOUTHEAST ALASKA CONSERVATI ON COUNCI L,
JUNEAU, expressed concern r egar di ng t he wor d,
"unattainable.” He disagreed with the argunment that the
restrictions and regulations were "unattainable." He
requested a final science report. He argued that, in many

i nstances, the requested criterion was attained. He pointed
out instances stated in the science panel's prelimnary
report stating conpliance of attainnment of zinc, copper,
nickel, and ammonia levels in 2011. He requested a review
of the prelimnary report to further exam ne the successes
in conpliance that some cruise ships attained. He proposed
hearing testinmony fromthe science panel.

10: 07: 26 AM

RI CK  ROGERS, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, RESOURCE  DEVELOPMENT
COUNCI L (via t el econf erence), grow Al aska t hr ough
responsi bl e developnent. He advocated for predictable,
tinmely and efficient state and federal permtting processes
based on sound science and economc feasibility. He
believed that public policy based on rhetoric, fear or

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 02/ 07/ 13 9:03 A M



m sinformati on would negatively inpact resource policy in
Al aska. He comended the cruise ship advisory panel, who
met approximately 15 tinmes to help shape a rational
wast ewat er discharge policy for the cruise industry. He
supported the legislation because the evidence did not
suggest that the health and productivity of the fisheries
would be conpromised. The fisheries were an inportant
renewabl e resource. The legislation was based on science
and the advice of DEC. The advanced systens on the cruise
shi ps wer e nor e ef ficient t han t hose f ound in
muni ci palities or on ferry ships.

10: 11: 43 AM

RICK HARNESS, HOVER (via teleconference), testified in
opposition to the |egislation. He voiced that t he
| egislation was pushed through the |egislature. He

advocated for taking time to study the issue further. He
argued that a mxing zone was technically a dunping zone

where many chemicals and netals were dunped into the water

He advocated for clean and pristine oceans. He wanted the
| egislature to hold the industry to a high standard for the
protection of the communities.

10: 15: 43 AM

M CHAEL MCCARTHY, HOVER (via teleconference) testified
against the legislation. He stated that he read the bill
along with a 62 page report. He nentioned that Haines'
residents had boycotted the cruise industry after reports
that cruise ships dunped raw sewage into Lynn Canal. He
recommended vetting the issue further as the consequences
of a bad decision were great. He pointed out section 2,

lines 10 - 13 of HB 80, which he opined circunvented
Al aska's best interest to protect water and fish. He quoted
Abraham Lincoln, "I do the very best | know how, the very
best I can and | nmean to keep doing so until the end. If

the end brings ne out all right, what is said against ne
won't amount to anything. If the end brings nme out wong
ten angels swearing | was right will nake no difference."

10: 19: 44 AM

ERI C YANCEY, WRANGELL (via teleconference), provi ded
history about the <cruise ship wastewater issue. He
understood that heavy netals were the major risk to sal non

He worried that the interior benefitted tourism while

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 02/ 07/ 13 9:03 A M



sout heast Al aska suffered from the effects of the cruise
shi p wast ewat er.

DEVI D BEEBE, KUPREANOF (via teleconference), testified in
opposition to HB 80. He stated that the fish could not
survive in the cesspool of Al askan waters. He clainmed that
nost of the fish caught were not safe to consune. He
advocated for commercial fishing.

10: 26: 15 AM

BYRON CHARLES, KETCHI KAN (via teleconference), testified in
opposition to HB 80. He nentioned a conversation wth
Representative Peggy Wl son regarding fisheries and waters.
He suggested that nunicipal tanks be installed to allow for
crui se ship wastewater disposal

10: 30: 55 AM

BERNAHARD RI CHERT, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), stated
that sales of resources were an inportant part of Alaska's
econony. He testified against the |egislation. He advocated
for the pristine image used to market Al askan resources.

10: 31: 43 AM

GECRCE PLETNI KOFF, PALMER (via teleconference) worked as
the Al aska COcean's canpai gner for G eenpeace. He expressed
concern for the inpacts of the legislation. He stated that
the nelting of the arctic ice wuld open the waters for
crui se ships. He wi shed for caution regarding the precedent
set regarding cruise ship regulations. He advocated for
clean waters in Southeast Alaska as well as the Arctic
Ccean. He added that some nunicipalities classified as
native villages discharged "primary one" treated sewage
into waters.

10: 34: 12 AM

JIM PONELL, JUNEAU, appreciated the difficult position of
the legislature. He understood that the state needed the
cruise ship industry. He recognized that the |egislature
was in a position where they nust predict the future in the
bal ance. He wshed to hear from the Coast Guard and
Department of Fish and Gane (DF&S. He thought that the
opi ni ons of bot h entities woul d provide val uable

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 02/ 07/ 13 9:03 A M



information. He added that DEC was not the expert in fish

He wi shed to know the cost of nonitoring the mxing zone
through bio nonitoring. He comented on cunul ative i npact
of discharge, which <could be ascertained through bio
nonitoring. He concluded that California had recently
passed a | aw regardi ng di scharge zones.

10: 38: 39 AM

M CHELLE RI DGEVWAY, JUNEAU, stated that she was a research
diver and lifelong Al askan. She served on the DEC cruise
ship wastewater science panel. She expressed concerns
regarding the report. She provided a letter to the
commttee regarding the science panel's final report. She
highlighted the zero fiscal note associated wth the
action. She argued that the action of the bill would |ead
to fiscal inpact for the developnent of a noving m xing
zone nodel that would adequately address the needs of the
bill'"s requirenments. Studies suggested that the cost of the
nodel could range from $50 thousand to $200 thousand range.
The science panel cost $310 thousand. She added that public
testinmony indicated that the public was unhappy wth the
| egi sl ation. She concluded that the science panel did not
address mxing zones in their inconplete report. Text was
added to the report in the final hour by a nenber of the
panel who represented the cruise ships. She expressed
concern about the nyth of instantaneous dilution in the
m xi ng zones. She nentioned DEC studies that stated that
wat ers were not diluted instantaneously.

10: 44: 34 AM

M. Pletnikoff continued with his testinony. He testified
in opposition to HB 80. He stated that the discharge from
400 additional ships would enter the Bering Sea as a result
of the legislation. He expressed concern about the sal non
due to the pollutants in the ocean water.

10: 47: 29 AM

DARLENE DOBDS, CALIFORNIA (via teleconference), expressed
concern about the dimnishing sal non population in Al aska.
She advocated for weighing both sides of the issue before
passi ng HB 80.

10: 48: 44 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 02/ 07/ 13 9:03 A M



VI WAGHI Yl, WVILLAGE OF SAVOONGA (via teleconference),
represented native popul ation. She spoke in opposition to
the legislation. She represented the native village of
Savoonga on Saint Lawence Island. She stated that her
people were very concerned about cruise-ship discharge
contam nating the ocean waters in the Bering Sea. She
expl ai ned that her people depended on the sea for physical,
cultural and spiritual sustenance. She expressed concern
about the ammoni a di scharge because of its inmpact on toxic
algae in the area. Heavy netals were also a concern as they
could concentrate in the flesh of traditional subsistence
foods. The copper in the <cruise ship discharge could
adversely affect a salnon's ability to navigate through the
ocean. The legislation would affect the villages' food,
safety, health and wel | bei ng.

Senator O son asked about the evidence of abnormalities in
t he sea ani nal s.

Ms. Waghiyi replied that global contam nants were trapped
in the arctic through air and ocean currents. She nentioned
a comunity based pr oj ect i dentifying pesti ci des,
Pol ychl orinated  bi phenyl (PCB) and heavy netals in
traditional foods. She insisted on proactive neasures to
protect the people of Al aska.

10: 55:11 AM

DELI CE CALCOTE, ALASKA |INTER TRAVEL COUNCIL, SUTTON (via
t el econference), testified in opposi tion to t he
| egi slation. She rem nded about article 12, section 12, the
di sclaimer and agreenment of the constitution of Alaska as

well as section 4 of the Conpact or agreenment for the
St at ehood Act. "Qur |ands, our people, our water, our fish,
our fish habitats are to be protected forever."” She

expressed that she felt harassed by the discharged
wast ewat er from crui se ships that accunulated significantly
leading to adverse effects. She wondered about pollution
di scharged into the air and water affecting the coastal
conmuni ti es.

10: 59: 55 AM

Pl AVA OLEYER, UNALASKA (via teleconference), explained that
she had raised her children in Unalaska. People in her
comunity died from pollution. She testified in opposition
to the legislation. She stated that, according to studies,

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 02/ 07/ 13 9:03 A M



irradiation of human waste purified it. She was unable to
| ocate studies stating that irradiation was not harnful to
humans. She voiced proof that pollution affected foods near
her hone, when she found fish with burns and portions of
rotten flesh. She found salnon riddled with white pustules,
whi ch she sent to DF&G it was deened a natural occurrence.
She stated that she had never seen these "natura
occurrences" during her childhood even though her famly
subsi stence fished for generations.

11: 04: 01 AM

HARROLD BORBI DGE, SITKA (via teleconference), testified in
opposition to the legislation. He asked why the state did
not subsidize the needs of the industry to neet the
stricter standards.

11: 06: 02 AM

MELLI SSA KOOKESH, ASSI STANT TO THE PRESI DENT, CENTRAL
COUNCIL TLING T AND HAIDA INDIAN TRIBES OF ALASKA
(CCTHI TA), read part of a letter witten by President
Thomas (copy on file). She opposed the bill. She expl ai ned
that Central Council served 22 villages and communities and
had over 28 thousand tribal ~citizens. She requested
assurance from DEC that the herring, salnon, shellfish and
seaweed would not be negatively inpacted by the | oosened
di scharged standards. She advocated for uniform and
stringent standards on permt requirenents for the cruise
ship industry.

11:10:11 AM

Co- Chair Meyer cl osed public testinony.

HB 80 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that the deliberations would continue
on February 8, 2013. He stated that DEC would testify again
and the commttee woul d vote.

Vi ce- Chair Fairclough requested testinony from DF&G

Co-Chair Meyer agreed to either invite the departnent to

the following day's commttee neeting or solicit a
statenment for the nenbers.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 02/ 07/ 13 9:03 A M



Vice-Chair Fairclough voiced that the abundant testinony
regardi ng subsistence fishing and habitat was the purview
of DF&G She remained very interested in the subject.

11:12: 53 AM

#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 11:12 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 02/ 07/ 13 9:03 A M



